
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR EDUCATION AND INCLUSION, SPECIAL 
EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITY 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational 
Needs and Disability, Councillor Bob Standley 
 
MONDAY, 11 DECEMBER 2017 AT 10.00 AM  
 
CC2, COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
AGENDA 
 
1   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 30 October 2017  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2   Disclosures of interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the Agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Member regards the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct 
 

3   Urgent items   
Notification of items which the Lead Member considers to be urgent and propose to 
take at the end of the appropriate part of the Agenda 
 

4   Proposed expansion of Polegate School  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

5   Approval of the East Sussex County Council  School Funding Formula for 2018/19  
(Pages 13 - 16) 
 

6   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 1 December 2017 
 
Contact Hannah Matthews, 01273 335138,  
 
Email:  Hannah.matthews@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 

mailto:Hannah.matthews@eastsussex.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR EDUCATION AND INCLUSION, SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND 
DISABILITY 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational 
Needs and Disability held at County Hall, Lewes on 30 October 2017. 
 

 
Councillor Sylvia Tidy and Francis Whetstone spoke on items 4 and 5 (see minutes 17 and 18).  
Councillor David Elkin spoke on item 5 (see minute 18). 
 
 
13 DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 26 SEPTEMBER 2017  
 
13.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 26 
September 2017 
 
 
14 DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS  
 
14.1 There were no disclosures of interest. 
 
 
15 URGENT ITEMS  
 
15.1 There were no urgent items. 
 
 
16 REPORTS  
 
16.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book.  
 
 
17 ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS 2019/20  
 
17.1 The Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational Needs and Disability 
considered a report by the Director of Children’s Services seeking approval to consult on the 
admission arrangements for the 2019/20 school year. At the meeting the Lead Member was 
provided with an update regarding a decision made by the Office of the Schools Adjudicator 
regarding the proposed admission number for Ditchling St Margaret’s Church of England 
Primary School. As a result the consultation document will include a revised proposed 
admissions number of 24.  
 
17.2 RESOLVED to approve consultation on the following proposed admission arrangements 
for the 2019/20 school year: 
 

1. To make a change to the community area for Hankham and Stone Cross primary 
schools so that the current discrete areas are merged to form one shared community 
area; 

2. To include the community area formerly served by Rodmell CE Primary School in the 
community area for Iford & Kingston CE Primary School following the agreed closure of 
Rodmell CE Primary School; 

3. To include the villages of Ditchling and Streat in Chailey Secondary School’s community 
area to create a shared area with Priory School; 

4. The proposed admissions numbers; and 
5. The proposed co-ordinated admissions schemes. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
 
 

 

Reasons 
 
17.3 The County Council is required by law to carry out consultation on admissions 
arrangements every seven years or sooner if there are any changes to those arrangements 
relating to schools where the local authority is the admission authority. 
 
 
18 PROPOSED EXPANSION OF WILLINGDON COMMUNITY SCHOOL  
 
18.1 The Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational Needs and Disability 
considered a report by the Director of Children’s Services seeking approval to publish statutory 
notices in respect of a proposal to expand Willingdon Community School. 
 
18.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 

1) Authorise the publication of a statutory notice in respect of a proposal to expand 
Willingdon Community School from 1,000 places to 1,200 places with effect from 1 
September 2020; and 
2) Delegate authority to the Director of Children’s Services to amend the proposals prior 
to their publication if required. 

 
Reasons 
 
18.3 The Council has a statutory duty to ensure there is sufficient capacity to meet demand 
for places and is therefore proposing to expand Willingdon Community School. This will create 
additional school places to serve recent and planned housing developments in the area the 
school serves.  
 
 
 
 
 
(The meeting ended at 10.25 am) 

Page 4



Report to:  Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational Needs 
and Disability 

Date of meeting: 11 December 2017 

By: Director of Children’s Services 

Title: Proposed expansion of Polegate School 

Purpose: To seek the Lead Member’s approval to expand Polegate School from 
420 places to 630 places with effect from 1 September 2019. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Lead Member is recommended to approve the expansion of Polegate School from 420 
places to 630 places effective from 1 September 2019.  

This recommendation is contingent upon: 

a) by 28 February 2018 the Lead Member determining an increase to the school’s Published 
Admission Number (PAN) from 60 to 90 effective from 1 September 2019, and 

b) planning permission for the enlargement of the premises being granted under Part 3 of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990(a).  

 

1. Background 

1.1 In recent years demand for school places in Polegate has increased as a result of new 
housing developments in the area.  Latest birth and GP registration data indicates that in-area 
demand for places will continue to exceed the number of places available at the school in the 
coming years. Polegate School is a popular and successful school and has for the last two years 
admitted bulge Reception intakes to provide more places.  For the September 2017 intake, 96 
parents/carers selected the school as a first preference.  The current PAN of 60 provides limited 
scope to meet parental preference. 

1.2 The Council has a statutory duty to ensure there are sufficient school places to meet 
demand and is therefore proposing to expand Polegate School to create additional permanent 
capacity. 

2. Supporting information 

2.1 In accordance with the prescribed process established by the School Organisation 
(Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2013 the Council consulted 
over a 4 week period between 23 June and 21 July 2017 on a proposal to expand Polegate School 
from 420 places to 630 places, increasing the published admission number (PAN) from 60 to 90 
with effect from 1 September 2019.  

2.2 On 26 September 2017 the Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special 
Educational Needs and Disability considered feedback from the consultation and approved the 
publication of statutory notices.  The Lead Member report can be viewed by following the link under 
‘background documents’ below. 

2.3 The statutory notice was published in the Eastbourne Herald on Friday 13 October 2017.  
The notice was also posted at the entrances to the school.  The notice and full proposal were 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



posted on the Council’s website.  A copy of the published statutory notice can be viewed in 
Appendix 1. 

2.4 Publication of the statutory notice was followed by a 4-week representation period, when 
comments or objections could be made to the Local Authority.  By the end of the representation 
period on 10 November 2017 no comments or objections had been received. 

2.5 Proposed changes to the organisation of maintained schools have to follow a prescribed 
process established by the School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools) 
(England) Regulations 2013.  This process complied with these requirements. 

2.6 Before reaching a decision on whether to approve the proposal, the Lead Member should 
consider a number of factors.  These are set out in Appendix 2. 

Equality Impact Assessment 

2.7 The Lead Member is required to have ‘due regard’ to the duties set out in Section 149 of 
the Equality Act 2010 (the Public Sector Equality Duty, ‘PSED’) in determining these proposals.  An 
Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) was undertaken as part of the consultation process to identify 
the equality implications of this proposal and any appropriate mitigation.  The EqIA was attached to 
the Lead Member report on 26 September 2017 (see background documents below).  No 
comments or objections were received during the representation period therefore no changes are 
required to the EqIA.  

3.  Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

3.1 In conclusion the Council has a statutory duty to ensure there are sufficient school places 
to meet demand and is therefore proposing to expand Polegate School to create additional 
capacity to serve the new housing developments in the area. 

3.2 The majority of respondents to the consultation support the proposal to expand Polegate 
School.  Concerns raised during the consultation relate largely to traffic and parking, loss of playing 
field and facilities and the requirement to enlarge the school hall.  These issues would be 
addressed through the detailed design process undertaken as part of the planning permission 
process. 

3.3 The Lead Member is recommended to approve the expansion of Polegate School from 
420 places to 630 places effective from 1 September 2019.  

This recommendation is contingent upon: 

a) by 28 February 2018 the Lead Member determining an increase to the school’s Published 
Admission Number (PAN) from 60 to 90 effective from 1 September 2019, and 

b) planning permission for the enlargement of the premises being granted under Part 3 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990(a).  

 
 
STUART GALLIMORE 
Director of Children’s Services 
 
Contact Officer: Gary Langford, Place Planning Manager 
Tel. No. 01273 481758 
Email: gary.langford@eastsussex.gov.uk 
 
LOCAL MEMBERS  
Councillor Daniel Shing 

Page 6

mailto:gary.langford@eastsussex.gov.uk


 
 
Background documents 
Report (agenda item 4) and minute from 26 September 2017 Lead Member meeting: 
https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=456&MId=3096&Ver=4 
Notice and full proposal Prescribed Information supporting the published statutory notice: 
https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk/childrens-services/proposed-expansion-of-polegate-school/ 
Education Commissioning Plan 2015-2019 (page 63): 
http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/educationandlearning/management/download.htm 
 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 – Copy of the statutory notice published on 13 October 2017 
Appendix 2 – Factors to be considered before reaching a final decision on the proposal 
  

Page 7

https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=456&MId=3096&Ver=4
https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk/childrens-services/proposed-expansion-of-polegate-school/
http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/educationandlearning/management/download.htm


Appendix 1 
 
 
Copy of the statutory notice published on 13 October 2017 
 

Page 8



  

Page 9



 

Appendix 2 
 
 

Factors which the Lead Member should consider before reaching a decision on the 
proposal to expand Polegate School 
 

1.1 Are the proposals related to 
other published proposals? 

The proposal to expand Polegate School is not related 
to other published proposals. 

1.2 Is conditional approval being 
sought for the proposal? 

Approval should be conditional upon: 
 

 By 28 February 2018 the Lead Member determining 
an increase to the school’s Published Admission 
Number (PAN) from 60 to 90 effective from 1 
September 2019, and 

 planning permission for the enlargement of the 
premises being granted under Part 3 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990(a). 

1.3 Was a statutory consultation 
carried out prior to the 
publication of notices? 

A 4-week period of consultation was carried out 
between 23 June and 21 July 2017.  A summary 
analysis of the consultation is included in the 
background documents to this report. 

1.4 Did the published notice 
comply with statutory 
requirements? 

The notice complied with statutory requirements as set 
out in 2.1 above. 

1.5 How will the proposal affect 
education standards and 
diversity of provision? 

Polegate School was rated ‘good’ at it last Ofsted 
inspection in May 2014 with outstanding leadership and 
management and behaviour and safety of pupils.  The 
school is very popular and has been regularly over-
subscribed in recent years.  

1.6 How will the proposal affect the 
proposed admission 
arrangements for the school? 

Subject to Lead Member approval by 28 February 2018, 
Polegate School’s Published Admission Number (PAN) 
will increase from 60 to 90 effective from 1 September 
2019. 

1.7 Has due regard under the 
Public Sector Equality Duty 
(PSED) been given to the need 
to eliminate discrimination, 
advance equality of opportunity 
and foster good relations? 

An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) was undertaken 
as part of the consultation process to identify the 
equality implications of this proposal and any 
appropriate mitigation.  The EqIA was attached to the 
Lead Member report on 26 September 2017 (see 
background documents).  No comments or objections 
were received during the representation period 
therefore no changes are required to the EqIA. 

1.8 Will the proposal have an 
impact on community 
cohesion? 

The vast majority of pupils (83.9%) attending Polegate 
School according to the January 2017 school census 
are of White British Heritage.  This is broadly in line with 
that of the population across the County (86%) based 
on the 2017 census.  15.9% of the pupils who attend 
the school are from a Black and Ethnic (BME) minority 
backgrounds.  Across Wealden District 8.6% of the 
school population is BME. (13.6% of primary aged 
pupils in East Sussex overall). 
 
Data for the school indicates that BME children are over 
represented at Polegate School in comparison with the 
county wide and district level percentages. 
 
Data for Polegate School indicates that the percentage 

Page 10



of pupils with English as an Additional Language (EAL) 
is 2.6% (years R-6).  This is lower than the East Sussex 
primary aged pupils of 6.6%. 
 
We believe the proposal will have a positive impact for 
the local community and therefore local children, as 
there will be more places available to meet the needs of 
the children in the local area, including those from 
different ethnic backgrounds.  In future more families 
will be able to access this popular local school. 

1.9 Will the proposal have an 
impact on travel and 
accessibility? 

The proposal is about providing more school places to 
serve the local community.  It is therefore unlikely that 
there will be an increase in journey times or transport 
costs.  Any impact on parking and traffic congestion 
would be addressed through the detailed design and 
planning process.  As part of this process the Council is 
working closely with the Highways Authority to ensure 
any risks are mitigated.   

1.10 Has capital funding been 
identified and secured to 
enable the proposals to be 
implemented? 

Funding has been identified and secured from the 
Schools Basic Need allocation in the Council’s 
approved capital programme. 

1.11 Have any particular issues or 
objections been raised during 
the representation period which 
could directly affect the 
proposal? 

By the end of the representation period no comments or 
objections had been received.  

 
 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational 
Needs and Disability 
 

Date of meeting: 
 

11 December 2017 

By: Director of Children’s Services 
 

Title: Approval of the East Sussex County Council  School Funding 
Formula for 2018/19 
 

Purpose: To provide an update on the recent East Sussex County Council 
Funding Formula consultation that took place with schools and 
academies; and to recommend the Lead Member approve the 
proposals for 2018/19. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Lead Member is recommended to approve the proposals in relation to the East Sussex 
County Council School Funding Formula for 2018/19: 

1) Primary Phase Proposal: 

Reduce the lump sum by £20,000, increase the English as Additional Language (EAL) 
‘pot’ by £300,000, increase Prior Attainment ‘pot’ by £600,000, reduce Free School 
Meals (FSM) by £100,000 and increase the per pupil ‘pot’ by £2,240,000. 

2) Secondary Phase Proposal: 

Decrease the lump sum by £28,000, increase the EAL ‘pot’ by £169,000, increase Prior 
Attainment ‘pot’ by £992,500, decrease the Per Pupil ‘Pot’ by £349,500 and reduce the 
Key Stage 4 (KS4) per pupil rate and increase Key Stage 3 (KS3) per pupil rate to 
match NFF KS3 and KS4 rates. 

 

 

1 Background 

1.1  On 14 September the Department for Education (DfE) issued its National Funding Formula 
(NFF) tables – which provided important information on the funding factors – its values, and the 
Lump Sum figure that would be used in the NFF with effect from 2020/21. 
 
1.2  There was also further confirmation that the East Sussex 2018/19 Schools Block would have 
an estimated 2.5% increase on the 2017/18 baseline figure and that there was increased flexibility 
for local authorities to protect schools via the Minimum Funding Guarantee and to increase the 
Capping percentage, to allow as much money as possible to be passed out to schools. 
 
1.3  The confirmation of additional funding for East Sussex schools, and also of the rates that will 
be applied to the various funding factors in the NFF, provided new context for the most effective 
way to support schools in the expected 2 year NFF transition period.  
 
2. Supporting Information 
 
2.1  At the Schools Forum meeting on 29 September the Forum felt it was appropriate to 
reconsider the East Sussex local funding formula for 2018/19 to ensure that all opportunities were 
explored and none were missed as we transition to the NFF. Therefore, the Funding Formula 
Working Group (FFWG) was reconvened and met several times in October to discuss and review 
the potential implications of this new information. 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



2.2  Final decisions were made by the FFWG regarding their recommendation to Schools Forum 
and these proposals were then brought to the extraordinary Schools Forum meeting on 31 
October. After discussion, the Schools Forum recommended that the proposals were issued to all 
schools and academies for consultation. These recommendations are based upon the agreed 
principle of working incrementally towards the NFF. This approach is deemed the most appropriate 
as it will support schools with their transition to the new formula.  
 
2.3  The proposals issued to all schools and academies for consultation were:   

 

Primary Phase Proposal: 

Reduce the lump sum by £20,000, increase the English as Additional Language (EAL) ‘pot’ by 
£300,000, increase Prior Attainment ‘pot’ by £600,000, reduce Free School Meals (FSM) by 
£100,000 and increase the per pupil ‘pot’ by £2,240,000. 
 
or 
 
No change made to the current funding factors. 

Secondary Phase Proposal: 

Decrease the lump sum by £28,000, increase the EAL ‘pot’ by £169,000, increase Prior 

Attainment ‘pot’ by £992,500, decrease the Per Pupil ‘Pot’ by £349,500 and reduce the Key 

Stage 4 (KS4) per pupil rate and increase Key Stage 3 (KS3) per pupil rate to match NFF KS3 

and KS4 rates.  

or 

No change to the current funding factors. 

2.4 The consultation questions were sent to the 181 maintained schools and academies 
(Including all through schools) on 6 November and the consultation closed on 17 November.  
 
2.5 Out of the 181 schools that were sent the consultation documents, 41 replied (23%). Of 
which, 19% in the Primary phase responded, whilst 42% in the Secondary phase responded. The 
composition of this can be seen below.  
 
2.6 A summary of the results from the schools (separated into phases) is shown below and 
shows that the majority of respondents agreed with the proposed changes to the Funding Formula: 

 
Primary Phase: 

 

Number of establishments that said ‘Agree’ 24 

Number of establishments that said ‘No Change’  6 

 
Secondary Phase: 

 

Number of establishments that said ‘Agree’ 10 

Number of establishments that said ‘No Change’ 1 

 
  

Page 14



3.       Conclusion and reasons for recommendations  

3.1    For the reasons set out in paragraph 2.2 and the outcomes of the consultation set out in 
paragraph 2.6, the Lead Member for Education and ISEND is recommended to approve the 
following proposals in relation to the Schools Funding Formula 2018/19: 

1) Primary Phase Proposal: 

Reduce the lump sum by £20,000, increase the English as Additional Language (EAL) ‘pot’ 
by £300,000, increase Prior Attainment ‘pot’ by £600,000, reduce Free School Meals (FSM) 
by £100,000 and increase the per pupil ‘pot’ by £2,240,000. 

2) Secondary Phase Proposal: 

Decrease the lump sum by £28,000, increase the EAL ‘pot’ by £169,000, increase Prior 

Attainment ‘pot’ by £992,500, decrease the Per Pupil ‘Pot’ by £349,500 and reduce the Key 

Stage 4 (KS4) per pupil rate and increase Key Stage 3 (KS3) per pupil rate to match NFF 

KS3 and KS4 rates.  

 

 
STUART GALLIMORE 
Director of Children’s Services 

 

Contact Officer: Ed Beale, Schools Funding Manager 

Tel. No.  01273 337984 

Email:  edward.beale@eastsussex.gov.uk 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

None 

Page 15

mailto:edward.beale@eastsussex.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 30 October 2017
	4 Proposed expansion of Polegate School
	5 Approval of the East Sussex County Council  School Funding Formula for 2018/19

